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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI
. SOUTHERN DIVISION.

- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 5 ; '
: ")+ CIVIL ACTION NO. 1:10cv578LG-RHW"
Plai];ﬁﬁ', I
)
V. .
A
PENNY PINCHER, INC,, DEANNA LYNN )
. COOLEY, and MICHAEL LAW. )
Defendants. )
y

CONSENT DECREE BETWEEN PLAINTIFF UNITED STATES
AND DEFENDANT PENNY PINCHER, INC.

L Intreductlon
1. I'he United States mmatcd this action on December 17, 2010, on bchalf of
- Complainants Casey Street and Gulf Coast Fair Housing Center (“GCFHC™), pursuént to the Fair
Housing Act (“FH&”), 42U.8. C §§ 3612(0) and 3614(a). |
Z Defendant Penny Pmcher Ine. (“Defendant” or “Psnny Pincher”) is a M1351551pp1
corperation with its pn'ngip'al place of business in Gulfport, Missmmppl. It publishes Penny

Pincher, a free want-ad newspaper,

3. The United States, in its Complaint, alleges the following with respect to
_ Defendant Penny Pincher:
a. By printing an advertisement for housing containing the prhvisb “no

" children” on or about January 24, 2008, which Complainant Street read on or
about January 25, 2008, Penny Pincher discriminated against Street on the basis

of familial status by publi shing an advertisement with respect to the rental of a
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dwelling the.t 'md'icatcd a preference, a Iimitatien or discrinﬁnaﬁen'bescd on
familial status, in wolauon of 42 U.5.C. § 3604(0)

b. . By printing the advemsement descnbed above and nine other similar
advemsements in 2008, Defenda.nt Pen.ny Plncher publlshed ten advemsements
w1th respect to the rental of a dwe]lmg ‘that indicated a preference a limitation, or
discrimination based on farmhal_ status, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c).
o7 Defendantlll’enny Pincher’s conduct in_violation of 42I‘. U.S‘C.. § 3604(e) |

© constitutes:

| i A pattem or p:acﬁce of res1sta11ce to the fuli enj oyment of rights
| granted by the f air Housing Act in violation of 42 U.s.C.
§ 3614(e); or '
) ii._ o A demal toa group of pereon oi‘ rights granted by the Fan' Housmg

Act that raises an 1seue of general pubhc importance in welamon of
42 US.C. §3614(¢} |
d. GCFIHC took actions to eouilteract. the eﬁeem of Defendant Penmy
Pmeher s conduct. Those actions Ltnpzured GCFHC’s ability to promote fair
‘housing on Mississippi’s C‘nﬂf Coast.’
4. ' Defendant Penny Pincher denies that it engaged in d1 scrimination in violation of
the Fait Heusmg Act as set forth in Pa.tagraph 3 above. : |
5 wln an effort to avoid costly litigation of eontes_-ted‘elaims, Plaintiff Ulnitved States
and befendant Pe_x_my Piheher-have voluﬁtarily egre'ed, as inﬁieeted byl the si gnaﬁlres below, to

resel‘ve Plaintiff’s claims against Defendant without the necessity of a hearing on the merits and

ywithout admission of liability or wrongdoing on the part of Defendant.
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Wherefore, it fs OkDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED:
H; Injunctive Relief |
6. Defendant Pc:nny I’mcher along with its officcrs agents, and employees, are )
enjomed from making, printing, or pubhshmg, or causmg to bc made plmted or published any
_notice, statemem, or ad_vemsemeut with respect to thp sale or rental of a dwellmg unit that
.indjcates any preference, limitation, or disqril;nina'don baﬁed on familial status in violation of 42
U-.S.C. § 3604(c). - |
L, Nondiscrimination Policies
7. Within 30 days afier the entry of this Decree, Dofendant Penny Pincher will .
.ilﬁplemcnt the following policies:l | |
a  In every issue of Pem.:ljlr PmChBI pub]jsﬁed during the duration of this
Decree, 'Dcfendant. s’hall print a notice sfating that, “The federal Fair Housing Act
proi’-nibits hdusing adv.ertisements that indicate rlmy preferéuoc, iinﬁtaﬁon; or -
dlscmnmauon because of race, color rchglon sex, disability, familial status
(having children uud,er age 18) or national ongm
- b, The notice shall also statc that “Readers arc cncouragsd to report to
Permy Pincher any advemscmems believed to be discnrmnatory, and shall
provide contact information for do‘ing 50. Defendant shall review any reported
advertisement in a mmely 'mamlef and ccz;se publication éf the .a.dvertisement it
Dcfendant determines that the rcport_c_d ﬁdvértisemen't indicates aﬁy preference,

limitation, or discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, disability,

 familial status, or national origin in violation of the Fair Housing Act.
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G Defendant shall review all adverti sse:me.ﬁts for dwellings submiﬁed for
pu]é]icatioh in Penny Pincher and shall reject any advertisement tﬁ_at indicate_s. any. ; |
- preference, lh-nitatjon, or discrimination becgusc o.f race, color, -religion, sex,
.disability, familial status, o‘r national origin in Violation.-o.f.thc .Fair-Housing At-:t. ,.
d. Any person who contracts to place a ﬁoﬁsin g advertisement in Penny
Pincherlsha]'l be informed, in wmmg sﬁbstantially in ﬂ_le forni of Attac]ﬁﬁeﬁt A to |
'this_ 'becrec, that the ff;deral Fait Houéiﬁg Act prohibits advertisements that |
: indjcatr;: amy preference, 1imita_.‘dc_nl, or discrimination because of race; color,
Icligi.on, sex, disability, fafui.lial statusl, or national ori_gin. Flor- advertisements
submitted in person at Penny Pincher’s ofﬁ{:le_, this paragraph will-be satisfied by
: tll-;e display in the office of a placard with text substantially in tl;e form of -
Aﬁ;alcﬁrcie_nx A to this Decree. | |
Iv. Mandatﬁff 'I‘-rf;xini'ng _
8. Within 9'(} days after the enirv of this Decree, Deféndant Penny Pincher E-ihﬁﬂ
: provéde an educatioﬁal program for its Qiﬂicefs, agenté, and"employees who have responsibi]iﬁes
for the acceptance or publicéﬁon' of advertiscllrnents for dwellings. p efendant shall pay any cost
* of this educational program. The United Stateé shall review and approve the content and form of .
" the pro gram, which shall offer instruction regardi_ﬁg the officers’, agents’, or empioyc:es’ ;
obligations under this Decree and undclr the federal Fair Housing A.ct. The trainer or training
eﬁtity shalll ‘r-ae -qﬁé]jﬁcd o perform such training, independent of Defendant o its cguns‘el, and -
approved in advance by the United States. | : |

9. Each individual required to participate in the educational program described in

" Paragraph 8 shall certify that he or she has pazﬁcipa;‘.ed in the educational training program, and
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understands and acknow-lcdges h_[S or her duties and res;laonsibilities under the fed 311;11 Fair
- Housing Act, by completing an acknowledgment in the 'forxln of Attachment B to this Decree.
| 10. Wiﬂajn 60 days after the date hé or she begins an ageﬁcy or employment

réia_itioﬁsﬁip with Defendant, each new ofﬁcer, agent, or employee who has re;;ponsibilitiés for
thg acceptance or publication of adverl;isemlerjtsl for dwc]linés shall be given thel_educaﬁonal
program d-cscribcd in Paragraph 8, and shall complete the acknowledgen%ent in the f(;rm &?f
Aﬁachment B to this Decree. | | N

| V. Monetary Damages for Aggrieved Pefsons

11.  Within 14 dayé after the entry of this Dearee,'Defendant Penny Pincher shall send
to counsel for the.Uziitsd States, via bvernight delivery, a check made pavaﬁle to “Gu.lf Coasf
Fair Housing Center” i i the amount of $10,000 and a check made payable to “Casey Stteet” in
the amount of$l 5001 |

b Dcfcndant Penny Pincher will provide a quarter-page advertisement to G’ulf Coast

Fair Housmg C enter for the purpose of promoting fair housing eachl week of pu.blicatiqn_ for24

monihs (1 00 lssur::s) commencmg mthjn 30 days after the entry of this Decree.

1Al correspondence required to be sent to the Umfcd States under the provmons of this -
Decree shall be sent to the U.S. Department of Justice, care of the undersigned counqel for'the
United States, Attn DJ 175-23-799, at’ the following addICbb(:S

Regular U.E,_. Mail: 950 Pennsy]vama Avenue, N.W.
“Washington, D.C. 20530

Overnight Mail: 1800 G Street, N. W,
- Suite 7002 - .
‘Washington, D,C. 20006
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| 15 | Counsel for the United Staltcs will not deliver the checks to the r;nmplainaj;ts
bcforc receiving signed re]eelnses. in the form of Attachment C from ﬂ-le complainants. .C(junsel
shall deliver the original signed rclcalses_to counsel for the Dafei;dant..
14. By 'tﬁcsc paymt;,nts, Defendan;n Penny Pincher makes no admission of liability.
See Para,grap.h 5 abovz-a.l | | |
B VL Civil Pe'n.alfyl
15, Wlﬂlln 14 days after the entry of this Decrcc Defendant Pcnny Pmcher shall send
to co unsd for the Umted States, via overnight dehvery, a check made payable to “Urutcd States
Treasmy’ in the amount of $3,500, as a civil penalty pursuant-to 42 B oF § 3614(dX1)X(C).
 VIL Notification and Document Retenﬁoﬁ Requirem.ct_xts
16.  Within 180 days after the entry of tiﬁs ].J_z?:c:re:f_:a Defehdé.nt Penny Pincher shall
submit to the United States an in_itial compliéﬂoe Irepluoﬂ that includes:.
| .a. A j‘ecbrd of thé actions taice.n to comply with éec’tiOn 111 of this Decree,
' -ipclludi;lg:
i a copy of the notice required by Par_agréph 7(a) 88 it appears in
each issuc.of Pennﬁz Pincher; |
il arecord of all adv.erti{se-menfs reported by readeré pursuant to the
| process set forth in Pa;agraﬁh -?"(b), inc'ludjng. the text of each
geported advertisemenf, the date of reader report, Dcfandah;[’s
action in response to the report, if any, and the-date by which
Defe_ndant took the acti-o'n, if any; . |

i, arecord of any advertisements rejected under the process set forth

in Paragraph 7(c); and
6
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iv. a ‘aample copy of the notice reqmred by Paragraph 7(d) to bc
prmndcd to all advertisers making thcm aware of the fbdtl’ﬁl Ealr
| Housing Act; and
.b' - Alistof Defendant’s officers, agents, and emplolyecs WHU have completed
the training prbg_ram- specified in Section IV of ‘Elus Delcree and completed the
' aclmowledgémént inc_luded as Attachment B toltbjs De;:ree.

17.  Defendant Pcmily Pincher shall submit three subsequent conrii;liance reports_:-on
the first an.d second anniversary of the entry of this Decree and 60 days -prior to the expifaﬁﬁn of
" the Déclree. - |
18. ‘Defendant Penny Pincher’s Subsequcnt uompliance reiaorts shall include:

4. A record of further actions takcn to comply with %ctlon I of this Decree

mcludmg

i a record of all a,dvertlserx; ents repor'ted by readers pursuant to the
process set forth in Paragraph 7(b) s*'mce the last compliance report, |
including the text of each reported a&vertisemani, the date of
reader report,_Defendant’s action in res;mrluée to the report, if any,
and the date by which Defendant tlook the action, if .any; and
ii. ' arecord of any advertisements rejected under the process set forth
* in Paragraph 7(c) since the last éompli;'mcc report; and

b. | A list of Defendant’s officers, agents, and emp]()j rees who have completed

the tra.mmg program spemﬁed in Séction IV of this Decree and completed the

ack—nowledgement included as A‘ttachment B to this Decree since the last

| compliance report.
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19. At the same time éa.ch cmnpliax_lce report is. prm‘ﬁded to thé United States,

Defendant Penny P.incher shall also prov’ide a papcrl oopjf of the latest i's.sue of Penny Pincher.

20. Défe;ndapt Pt':nhy Pinchél; shall advise the United States in writing within 14 days
olf repeipt of any administrative or legal complaint regarding housing discrimination made -

. agamst Defendant or agai_nst any officer, agent, or employee of Defendant 111 connection with
such officer’s, agant’s;-, or employee’.s work for Defendant. Upon reasc-mablc notice, Defendant -
Penny Pincher will also provide the United States all informéﬁon it may request concerning any
such complaint, _Deféndant Penny Pincher shall also advise counsel for the United States, i )
'\;.rriti'ﬁg, within 14 days of the resolution of any complaint. I

21, Defendant Penpy I;in_chf;r shall preserve, for the duration of this Décres, all |
ret;,ords related to this Decreé. Upon reasoﬁable noﬁce to Defendant Pénny Pincher, |

' rcpresentatives of the United States will be permitted to ﬂlépect and copy any records of
De_ft-‘»ndant related to this Decree and inspect and copy published.issues of Penny Il’in-cher‘
Records rela.ted' to tﬁis Décree irllclulde,. but are not limited to, published is.;aues of Pe;:nny Pincher,

_ reports ﬁﬁé to Periny Pinchcr.by' ._rcadcrs pursuant to the process set forth in Paragraph 7(b),
éopics of advertisemél_r'ts rejected under the ﬁroccss set forth in Paragraph 7(c), and the training

' ccrti.‘ﬁcaﬁm_ls described in Paragraph 9. .. |

| - VIIL Scope and Duration of Cm_];.ent Decree | |
- 22.  The provisions of this Decree shall apply to Defendant Penny Pincher ;md its
officers, agents, and employees who havé rcépqnsiﬁﬂities for the accepta;;ce or bublication of
advcrti.sements for Idwcl]jngs.l | - |

23.  This Decree is effective immedi ately upon its éntry by the Court and shall remain

in effect for three years from the date of entry.
‘ - | '8
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24, - The .Coﬁﬂ shall retéin Jurisdiction over this acﬁen for all purposes related to the
enforcement of t}iis-f)ecré:e ﬁoughout its term, after which time the case.sha]i be dismissed with
~ prejudice. - | | - |

©25.  The United States ﬁa;* move the Court.to extend the period in which thls Decree

15 in cffectl if the interests of justice require an extension. |

26. The parties to this Decree shall endeavor in good faith to reéoh?e informally ans; -
differem;cs- rcgarding intérp;emﬁon of énd .compliance with this Decree prior to briﬁging such
matters to the Court for resolution. However, in the event that Defcndan; Penlny Pinc}l_ler either
fails to perform in a timely .ﬁmmer any act required by this Decree or acts in violation of any
provision of this Decree, the Ijnitcd States méy move the Court tc; impo'se'any rerdedy authorized |
by law or equity, ir_icluding, but not limited to, an order rec‘{'ﬁiring.pcrformance Or non-
" performance of certain -actls_ and- dIl award of @y damages and Ico-slts that may have 'héen.

occasioned by ijefe;xjdant’s action or in'actiop. |

" 27.  Any time period set forth Wlﬂ'u]l this Decree for the performance of any act may

be changéd by written agreement of the parties without Court approval.




e —————————
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TX. Costs of Litigation
28, All partaeq shall be rcspons:ble for their own attorncy s fees aud costs assomated

with this acton
P

IT IS SO ORDERED, this S/ day of Lherpea ,,201;&

x_l.-- -f;'/ /}(’ j /\\ \)3/
Cossef el =7

"LOUIS GUIROLA, JR: — \

CHIEEY'S. DISTRICT JUDGE
p

By Thelr SIgIlBILlI‘CS below, the partics consent to the cntry of this Consent Order, -

FOR TI-IEI _UNITED STATES:

Dated Avavs+ A9 oo | : Lo Twom a

JOHN M. DOWDY, IR ' - THOMAS E. PEREZ -

United States Attorney . : Assistant Attorney Genéral .
R Civil Rights Division - ' I |

ool

STEVEN H. ROSENBAUM - -

~ Assistant United States Attorney Chief o
Office of the U.S. Attorney ; . . MICHAEL S. MAURER
Southern District of Mississippi . - Deputy Chief
501 E, Court Street - Suite 4.430 o JOEL FLAXMAN
 Jackson, Mississippi  39201-0101 Attorney
{601) 973-2840 : _ ' Housing and Civil Enforcement Sectlon
. (Mississippi Bar No, 6014) Civil Rights Division
Mitzi.Paige@nisdoj.gov g * - U.S, Department of Justice
' - . 950 Pennsylvania Avenue NW
Northwestern Building, 7th Floor -
Washington, D.C. 20530
(202) 3054148
(202) 514-1116 (fax)

‘Joel. Flaxman@usdoj.gov

10
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FOR DEFENDANT PENNY PINCHER, INC.: -

D. JEFFREYY WHI -
Boyce Hollgman & ates
1720 23rd A /Boyce Hollerrian

. Boulevard
Gulfport, MS 39501
(228) 863-3142
jeff@boyceholleman.com
Counsel for Defendant Penny Pincher, Inc.

ESoent -
On behalf of Penny Pincher, Inc.

. . B 2.
Dated O~ 50 2011

11
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Attachment A

TEXT FOR LETTER TO ADVERTISERS

When placing a housing advertisement in Penny Pitcher you must comply with section
3604(c) of the Federal Fair Housing Act. Section 3604(c) prohibits making, printing, or
publishing any notice, statement, or advertisement, with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling
that indicates any prcicrcnce limitation, or discrimination bascd on any of the followmg
uatcg,ones

race or color

religion

sex

handicap or disability

familial status (having children under age 18)
national origin

If we determine that yimr advertisement violates the law, we will not print it. - For more
miormatlon on the Federal Fair Housing Act, please visit the foliowmg websites:

http://www justice. gov/crb‘abouﬂhcc(uﬂe%; php
hitp:/fwww.hud.gov/offices/theo/FHLaws/yourrights.cfm

12
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Aftachment B -

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF TRAINING BY
OFI* ICER, AGENT, OR EMPLOYEE OF PENNY PII\ CHER, INC.

_ On_ - . ' , 20, I completed an in-person trammg on the requirements of
the federal Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601-19, pursuant to the Consent Decree entered by
the United States District Court for the Southern District of Mississippi in Unifed States v. Penny
Pmcher Inc., etal, Case No. 1: 10c:\«5'?8LG-RHW (S.D. Miss.).

[ was mstructed on procedures to ensure that housmo advertisements indicating a
preference, a limitation, or discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, disability, family
© status, and national origin are not published or otherwise disseminated in Penny.Pincher. I
understand.that T have a legal obligation to follow the procedures on which I have been trained.

' (Signature)

* (Print name)

(Date) .

13
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Attachment C
RELEASE

In consideration {or the parties’ agreement to the terms of the Consent Decreé entered in

* United States v. Penny Pincher, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:10¢v578LG-RHW (S.D. Miss.), and
payment to me of § by Df:fcndam Penny Pincher, Inc., I bereby agree, effective upon
receipt of payment, o release and discharge any and all claims with prejudice that I may or
might have had by reason of the incidents or activities as alleged in the Complaint against -
Defendant Penny Pincher, Inc., except for and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the

“Consent Decree entered by the Dlsmct Court

. Tacknowledge and understand that by 31gnmg this Release and acccptmg this payment, I
am waiving any right to pursue my own legal action against Defendant Penny Pmcher Inc.,
based on the discrimination alleged by the Lmted States in this action.

I am 1cca11y competent and amhon?ed to execute this agreement on behalf of the party
" whose name is su‘bscnbed at the mg:aatoneb ].me

T also ;Lcknowledge that [ have bccn informed that I may review the terms of this Release
with an attorney of my choosing, and to the extent that I have not obtained legal d.dVlCC I
voluntarily and lmowmgly waive my right to do so.

TJ:us Relcase conbtltutcs the entire agreemcnt between me and Defendant Penny Pincher,
Inc., without exception or exclusion.

- Sigpature

Printed Name

On Behalf of (if relevant)

Date

14




